
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
July 6, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Sabrina Wolfson, Esq. (Meyers Nave) 
        (via phone for a portion of Closed Session) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Acting President Marquez de la Plata at 
6:34 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 
p.m.) 


 
The Board Secretary pulled Item V-A (Appeal of District Rejection of New Water Service at 14712 
Eagles Nest, Rio Nido) from the Agenda. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.) 
 
Director Marquez de la Plata reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski moved 
to approve the Consent Calendar. Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  The following 
items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 1, 2017 Board Meeting.  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:36 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:36 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Appeal of District's Rejection of new Water 


Service at 14712 Eagles Nest, Rio Nido.  This item was pulled from the Agenda.  
 
V-B. (6:36 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-12, Approving an Agreement for 


Bond Counsel for the USDA Bond.  The Board Secretary gave an overview of this 
item.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Lipinski moved to approve Resolution 17-12, 
Authorizing the Engagement of Bond Counsel in Connection with a Loan to be Made to 
the District by the United State Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Services 
(USDA/RUS) for the Financing of CIP 2017, Phases 2 and 3.  Director Schaap seconded.  
Motion carried 3-0.   


 
V-C. (6:39 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Water Rights and the SCWA Fish Flow 


Project.  The Board Secretary gave an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  
No action was taken.  


 
V-D. (6:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project.  The Board 


Secretary gave an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was 
taken.  


 
V-E. (6:46 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re CSDA Ballot to Elect Two Representatives.  The 


Board Secretary provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Direction 
was given to staff to submit the completed ballot to CSDA, voting for Candidates John 
Carapiet and Robert Silano. 


 
V-F. (6:40 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-13, For the Election of Directors to 


the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Board of Directors (4 
open seats to be filled).  The Board Secretary provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Director Schaap moved to approve Resolution 17-13, Election of 
Directors to the Special District Risk Management Authority Board of Directors, and 
marking ballot to select Candidates James M. Hamlin, Mike Scheafer, Michael J. Karen, 
and David Aranda.  Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 3-0. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (6:48 p.m.) 
(None.) 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(6:48 p.m.) 


 
Director Lipinski announced that he would not be at the August meeting. 
Director Marquez de la Plata announced that algae problems had been identified at the Monte Rio 


Beach. 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (6:52 p.m.) 
 
At 6:52 p.m., Director Marquez de la Plata announced the items for discussion in Closed 
Session.  At 6:53 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 7:56 p.m., the meeting 
reconvened and the following action was taken on the Closed Session item listed below: 
 


 2







 3


 A. Conference with Legal Counsel - Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 


  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:58 p.m.) 
 
1. 2017-18 Flat Charge 
2. CIP 2017 update 
3. District water rights  
4. Guernewood Park Resort 
5. Rejection of water service request on Eagles Nest Lane 
6. Capacity Charge requirement - Leslie Bahr 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:36 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:36 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (6:48 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(6:48 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (6:52 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
August 3, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata (arr. 6:32 pm) 
   
Board Members Absent: Tim Lipinski 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Esq. (Meyers Nave) 
      Erin Rickards 
      Carrie Moriarty 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 6:31 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
Director Schaap recused himself as to Item V-B (District's Rejection of New Water Service at 14712 
Eagles Nest, Rio Nido) due to a potential conflict of interest. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder 
requested that the Minutes (Item III-A) be pulled for discussion.  Director Schaap moved to approve 
the remaining item(s) on the Consent Calendar. Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  
The following items were approved:  
 


A. (Removed for discussion)  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 


 1







 
 


III-A. (6:34 p.m.) Approval of the Minutes of the June 1, 2017 Board Meeting.  This item 
was removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion.  Director Robb-Wilder 
requested that the names of the candidates selected by the Board for Items V-E (CSDA 
ballot) and Item V-F (SDRMA ballot) of the July Board meeting be added to the Minutes.  
Brief discussion ensued.  This item was continued to the September Board meeting due 
a lack of Board members present who had attended the July meeting sufficient to pass a 
motion. 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:35 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Sukey Robb-Wilder's Desire to Resign from the 


Office of Board President.  Director Robb-Wilder introduced this item.  Director Holmer 
moved to accept the resignation.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by 
Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  Director Holmer withdrew his motion.  Director Holmer 
moved to accept President Robb-Wilder's delegation of the duty of running the Board 
meetings to Vice President Marquez de la Plata for the remainder of her term.  Director 
Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-B. (6:40 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Appeal of District's Rejection of New Water 


Service at 14712 Eagles Nest, Rio Nido.  Comments were made by Robin Donoghue.  
Director Schaap recused himself due to a business relationship with the property owner.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Property Owner Erin Rickards made a 
presentation to the Board.  Board questions and significant discussion ensued.  No 
action was taken. 


 
V-C. (7:23 p.m.)  Public Hearing: Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-14, Overruling 


Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge for Sweetwater Springs 
Water District.  The GM gave an overview of this item.  At 7:25 pm, Vice President 
Marquez de la Plata opened the Public Hearing.  There were no comments.  He closed 
the Public Hearing at 7:25 p.m.  A recommendation was made by Legal Counsel Robin 
Donoghue to amend Motion 17-14 to amend Resolved 1 as follows: 


 
 "1.  That all objections to and protests against said report, if any, .... "  (amended 


portion underlined) 
 
 Director Holmer moved to approve Resolution 17-14 as amended.  Director Robb-Wilder 


seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
V-D. (7:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and 


Capital) Report ;thru June 30, 2017.  The GM gave an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


 
V-E. (7:42 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Water Rights and the SCWA Fish Flow 


Project.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No 
action was taken. 


 
V-F. (8 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project.  The GM gave an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  
 


 2







V-G. (8:07 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Pursuing District investment in the Public Agency 
Retirement Services (PARS) Rate Stabilization Program.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to move 
forward with the Program.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:15 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Russian River flow 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. CIP 2017 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:24 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:24 p.m.) 
 
At 8:24 p.m., Director Marquez de la Plata announced the items for discussion in Closed 
Session.  At 8:25 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9:10 p.m., the meeting 
reconvened and the following action was taken on the Closed Session item listed below: 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6) 
  District negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 B. Conference with Legal Counsel - Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 C. Pursuant to Gov Code Section 54957 - Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
  Title: General Manager 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:12 p.m.) 
 
1. PARS 
2. July Minutes 
3. Monte Rio Rec and Park land purchase proposal 
4. CIP 2017 update 
5. District water rights  
6. Guernewood Park Resort 
7. Capacity Charge requirement - Leslie Bahr 
 
 


 3







 4


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:18 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:15 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:24 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:24 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


September 7, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 6, 2017 and the August 3, 2017 Board 


Meetings 
 







B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Appeal of Capacity Charge Requirement at 15967 Laurel 


Place Guerneville.  (Owner: Leslie Bahr) (Est. time 20 min.) 
  
B. Discussion/Action re Proposal of the Monte Rio Recreation and Park District 


(MRRPD) to acquire District lands in Monte Rio (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-15, Approving the Adoption of the Public 


Agencies Post-Employment Benefits Trust Administered by Public Agency 
Retirement Services (PARS)  (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 


subdivision (d)(2) of Section 54956.9 based on correspondence from Leslie Bahr 
(one potential case) 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 7, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: APPEAL OF WATER SERVICE TERMINATION AT 15967 LAUREL 
PLACE, GUERNEVILLE, CA  
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Confirm District staff's decision to terminate water service 
at 15967 Laurel Place, Guerneville, CA because of non-payment of Capacity Charge 
and Annual Flat Charge for this parcel. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Capacity Charge for FY 17-18 is $6,214 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
This item appears on the Agenda at the request of the property owner, Leslie Bahr.  
She has provided packet materials of her own which is included in the agenda 
packet.  Staff has a different view which is provided below. 


District staff turned off water service to Ms. Bahr's property at 15967 Laurel Place, 
Guerneville, CA on July 1, 2017.  This has been a long-running situation which 
requires some explanation which follows: 


Ms. Bahr's issue is whether she should pay the Capacity Charge for her parcel.  The 
District's Capacity Charge is governed by District Policies 3020.142-146 which was 
last revised in September 2009 by District Ordinance 40.  Ordinance 40 provided 
that the Capacity Charge was set at $3,763.00 plus annual increases of $245 plus 
the total annual amount of the ensuing fiscal year Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
wich reflects revenues needed to repay outstanding District loans.  The Capacity 
Charge for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 is $6214.00.  Prior to Ordinance 40 the Capacity 
Charge was known as the accumulated or back Flat Charge and new customers who 
hadn't been paying the annual Flat Charges on their tax bill (or new owners of 
parcels that hadn't had these Flat Charges paid) had to pay the annual Flat Charges 
accumulated since the District's formation in 1992.   


The water service in question is in the Schoenemann pressure zone which has 45 
services, a small diameter water line (mostly 2"), and 10,000 gallons of storage.  
This pressure zone is near the limit of its capacity and can add only one additional 
service which could be Ms. Bahr's parcel.   







Leslie Bahr Appeal  2  
September 7, 2017 


This parcel and neighboring parcels which may or may not be owned by Ms. Bahr 
have a history which predates Ms. Bahr's participation.  In 2006 District staff had 
discussions with Michael Romero who owned this property and apparently others in 
the vicinity about the possibility the Mr. Romero could improve the water supply 
situation in this pressure zone with the construction of a larger water tank.  In return 
the District would give him water service for two parcels.  The District agreed to give 
Mr. Romero a temporary water service for 90 days so that he could proceed with 
construction. Mr. Romero never "applied for, paid for, and received a new service 
connection".   Apparently he became ill, lost interest in this project and he 
subsequently passed away.  The billing account for the Romero temporary meter 
was closed in 2009; the account was never active, no water was ever used for that 
account, and the District never received any monthly charges or any other revenue 
for the inactive account. 


In 2009 District staff was approached by Ms. Bahr with the stated hopes of 
resurrecting Mr. Romero's project.  Ms Bahr presented herself and her brother-in-
law, Mr. Bruce Cassem, as the owners of 3 parcels in need of water service and 
reiterated Mr. Romero's proposal and supplied the attached conceptual proposal.  On 
the last page of the proposal is the clear offer to construct a water tank in return for 
water services to 3 parcels.  We did not discuss the current situation of water service 
to any of these parcels in these discussions.  In these discussions, I assumed Ms. 
Bahr understood the Capacity Charge issue - that was the purpose of the exchange 
of a water tank for three services; we did have a discussion of the monetary issues.  
The cost of the water tank was more than three capacity charges and connection 
fees, but Ms. Bahr would have more control over where the water tank would be 
located.  In late 2009, this proposal was presented to the Board of Directors who 
gave conceptual approval and directed staff to work with Ms. Bahr to help make the 
proposal happen.  The Board did not formally approve any agreement related to this 
situation at this or any other time.   


After conceptual approval of the water tank for services proposal, Ms. Bahr 
apparently moved forward for other approvals of her development project.  
Apparently the parcel(s?) in question were not in the Russian River Wastewater 
Service area and Ms. Bahr went through a lengthy County process for a General Plan 
Amendment to get these parcels included in the Wastewater Service Area.  The 
District sent letters of support to Supervisor Carrillo and Planning Commissioner 
Lynch upon request by Ms. Bahr but did not participate in or follow the process.  The 
process went on for some time (years, I believe) and at some point Ms. Bahr's 
request was formally denied, timed out, or had some other negative ending, which 
apparently ended Ms. Bahr's attempt to develop these three parcels. The District 
was not informed when the process was ended.   Ms. Bahr had a mobile home on 
one of the parcels in question and was getting water service.  I thought it was a 
"temporary service" inherited from Mr. Romero and knew we would need to address 
the Capacity Charge requirement to make her service permanent and on an equal 
footing with other customers of the District.   


In fact, the water service Ms. Bahr was paying for was not as management 
assumed. The true history of the water service Ms. Bahr was paying for was not fully 
understood by management until after Ms. Bahr asked to appeal the Board in June 







Leslie Bahr Appeal  3  
September 7, 2017 


2017. What we now know is that Ms. Bahr was using her neighbor's service, and we 
believe she was using it with his knowledge and consent until July 2016. Because 
Ms. Bahr was not using the billing account clearly flagged as "temporary" there were 
no alerts that her situation needed attention.  Here is the history we uncovered: 


In August 2011, Ms. Bahr's neighbor Gerrit (sp?) Drexhage called the District to ask 
that the billing address to his account be changed to Gerrit Drexhage, care of Leslie 
Bahr, and sent to her address in San Francisco.  In September 2011, Mr. Drexhage 
called to say he had sold the property to Bruce Cassem (we understand Mr. Cassem 
is or was Ms. Bahr's brother-in-law).  Ms. Bahr then called in September 2011 to 
take over Mr. Drexhage's account in her own name as the owner, assuming the bill 
back to the beginning of the billing period.  From the District's perspective, this 
meant no site visit would be required to read the meter. 


Much of this was not accurate -- Mr. Cassem (or Leslie Bahr) never purchased Mr. 
Drexhage's property, but our billing personnel didn't know this and wouldn't question 
it because the original call had come from Mr. Drexhage himself. From 2011 to 
2016, Ms. Bahr paid Mr. Drexhage's parcel's water bill, and Mr. Drexhage paid the 
annual Flat Charge on his tax bill.  The use of Mr. Drexhage's meter for Ms. Bahr's 
property was in violation of District Policy 3010.70 Each Living Unit to Have Meter, 
but was not discovered by the District when it was happening (not discovered until 
July 2017 because of this appeal.  Neither party commented further on this 
arrangement to the District until July 2016. 


In July 2016 Mr. Drexhage called the District to tell us he wanted his service turned 
on. The parcel he referenced was in our billing system as belonging to Ms. Bahr, who 
had opened the account as the owner. Mr. Drexhage came in with his property tax 
bill to show he had been paying the annual Flat Charge.  


With receipt of this information, the District could have disconnected the illegal 
plumbing servicing Ms. Bahr on Mr. Drexhage's line. Instead, in light of the past 
relationship with Mr. Romero and Ms. Bahr, and not fully understanding what had 
happened with the temporary service, Ms. Bahr's service was left intact and the 
District plumbed a new service to Mr. Drexhage.  Ms. Bahr was notified in July 2016 
that her service was now temporary, and she needed to pay the Capacity Charge to 
make it a legal service complying with District policies. Emails passed back and forth 
between me and Ms Bahr with Ms. Bahr protesting the need for the Capacity Charge 
and me answering her questions regarding the situation which was since her project 
was not viable and a water tank was not being exchanged for 3 services, the 
Capacity Charge needed to be paid for the parcel for which she needed water 
service. Months passed with no word from Ms. Bahr. In April 2017 she was given a 
deadline to pay of June 30, 2017, at which time her "temporary" service would be 
disconnected. 


Staff received no further communication from Ms. Bahr on this issue until June 26, 
2017, when she requested that her service not be turned off until she had an 
opportunity to appeal the turnoff to the Board.  Because several Board meetings had 
happened since the notice to pay by June 30, staff denied her request and her 
service was disconnected on July 1, 2017. 







Leslie Bahr Appeal  4  
September 7, 2017 


It's clear from the record that: 


 Ms. Bahr knew that payment (something like the Capacity Charge) was 
needed for District water service (three services for a water tank proposal in 
2009). 


 Ms. Bahr knew that the service she was using belonged to Mr. Drexhage. 


 The first account Ms. Bahr had with the District was in September 2011 and it 
was for Mr. Drexhage's parcel for which he was paying the Flat Charge.   


 Mr. Drexhage had directed the District that Ms. Bahr should be paying the 
water charges for that account, to which she agreed.   


 The parcel for which Ms. Bahr has had service has never had a Capacity 
Charge paid nor is it on the tax roll for the annual Flat Charge.   


Staff recommends that Ms. Bahr's appeal be denied.   


 







Proposal by Ms. Bahr regarding construction of water tank in return for 3 services



























August 29, 2017 
 
 
Dear Members of the Board of Directors, 
 
The following is a discussion of the circumstances surrounding an existing 
water connection associated with a parcel of land herein described and 
referred to as 15967 Laurel Place, Guerneville, CA 
 
SUMMARY and RESOLUTION 
 
SSWD’s “Policy Regarding Capacity Charge Required for Meter” provides in 
Section 3020.144(a) that, 
  “The entire capacity charge is to be paid within 30 days after the District  
  approves an applicant’s improvement plan for water service unless the 
  District defers, waives or modifies this requirement pursuant to a written 
  agreement and the applicant, approved by the Board of Directors.”   
 
 At no time did I submit an “improvement plan for water service,” and at no 
time did SSWD review or approve an “improvement plan for water service” for my 
property.  Therefore, there was no reason why a capacity charge was or is due.  
The July 25, 2016 email demand by SSWD that I pay a capacity charge, and all 
subsequent requests and demands that I pay a capacity charge, were premature, 
inconsistent with, and unlawful under SSWD’s own regulation.  Further, the 
action taken by SSWD on or about June 30, 2017 in terminating its water service 
to my property at 15967 Laurel Place, Guerneville, CA, based upon my lawful 
refusal to pay the capacity charge (which, by the SSWD’s own regulation, was 
not due) was arbitrary, capricious, discriminatory, inconsistent with SSWD’s own 
rules, and unlawful. SSWD must comply with its own regulations. Therefore, 
SSWD should: (a) restore my water service, which it unlawfully terminated on the 
pretext that a capacity charge payment of $5,901,80 was due, and (b) not seek to 
collect any capacity charge from me until such time as it approves such 
“improvement plan for water service” as I elect to submit.  
 As a good faith offer to resolve this matter, when SSWD restores single 
family residential water service to my property, I will pay, even though no capacity 
charge is due and owing, the capacity charge at its rate of $2,930 (once this 
figure has been verified) in 2006, when SSWD established water service to my 
property. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 







 For the record, I would like to state that I, in conjunction with my brother-in-
law, purchased 15967 Laurel Place from owner Michael Romero, closing the sale 
in February of 2009.The property was listed four separate times in a period 
dating from 2006-late 2008. All listing materials for the property presented it as 
including “electrical and water utilities.” There was nothing to contradict this 
information in any of the closing documents related to the sale. 
 Subsequently, I undertook a GPA (General Plan Amendment) project, as 
directed by PRMD, in an attempt to get my parcels connected with the sewer 
line. A necessary requirement of the GPA proposal included the provision of a 
public benefit. As SSWD’s Shoeneman tank, located in a small jigsaw puzzle 
piece of land amidst my parcels, was greatly in need of replacement due to its 
limit of 10,000 gallons, and because the tank partially disrupts a view from one of 
the parcels, I made an offer to Steve Mack and Kevin Gilman, managers of 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (hereafter referred to as SSWD) to provide a 
new 30,000 tank in a different location, one that would supply water to the entire 
service area. My proposal was warmly received and accepted by Mr. Mack, and 
he wrote a letter of support for the GPA proposal that was submitted to PRMD as 
part of my packet. The agreement included the provision that I would receive 
three metered water connections at no charge due to the great benefit of my 
providing expanded water capacity to the entire service area. Despite the fact 
that PRMD had outlined and directed this GPA to me, when it was completed and 
finally presented, after two years of effort and expense on my part, they refused 
to pass the amendment. 
 In his August 22, 2017 letter in response to my questions, Mr. Mack 
acknowledged that SSWD established “Single Family Residential” water service 
in my name for my property in September of 2011  Although I believe that such 
service was actually established by SSWD earlier, in 2009, after I had acquired 
the property, it is incontestable that SSWD did establish Single Family 
Residential service for my property in my name, and that it did so well before it 
first notified me, in 2016 (as also acknowledged in Mr. Mack’s letter), that the 
existing service was “temporary.” And from that time forward, through June 30, 
2017 (when Mr. Mack had the service disconnected) I faithfully paid all water 
bills, despite the fact that the only time I spent on my land was in a small trailer 
for maintenance purposes, generally amounting to a maximum of 30 days per 
year. 
 Though Mr. Mack has claimed that my service was on a meter, I do not 
understand how this could have been the case, as the monthly flat rate never 
varied, which it would have done had the service been metered. Throughout its 
onset and the entirety of my service connection (a period of nearly ten years), no 
discussion or mention of the fact that SSWD considered the existing water 
connection to be “temporary” rather than “permanent” was ever made. I believed 
the existing connection to be fully associated with my property, and had no 
reason to believe otherwise since I was a paying customer of SSWD.  







 When Mr. Mack initially contacted me on July 15, 2016, and suddenly 
announced that I was required to pay what he referred to as a “capacity charge” 
fee, I was confused. I had no familiarity with the term, as at no prior time had 
SSWD broached the subject, and did not understand how such a fee was 
determined or the reason I was suddenly obligated to pay it. Mr. Mack offered 
very little by way of explanation, providing only the information that “someone 
else had asked about getting water service,” and that the service for which I had 
been making payments for nearly ten years was in fact only “temporary.” 
 Mr. Mack later acknowledged the confusion his sudden demand had 
caused, and proposed I pay the fee in installments. I responded by stating that I 
needed time to investigate the details of the land purchase and my closing 
documents, and wanted to better understand the circumstances under which an 
owner of unoccupied land was required to pay such a charge. No further 
information was put forward by Mr. Mack along those lines, despite his having 
offered to provide it.  
 Nine months later, on April 27, 2017, when Mr. Mack contacted me again, 
he acknowledged he had “dropped the ball” on the matter, but instead of 
providing any information that would clarify the situation, as I had anticipated, he 
merely demanded payment by June 30, 2017, with the threat of disconnecting 
my service should I not pay by that date. To this, I responded by asking highly 
specific questions of Mr. Mack, all of which, as a long-standing customer of the 
district, were reasonable, considering the nearly $6,000 fee he was demanding I 
pay. Again, he refused to offer any information or answers, until I was forced to 
undertake a lawyer’s assistance in obtaining them. 
 The District, under then managers Chuck Howell and Kevin Gilman, 
provided a water connection to original owner Michael Romero on or about 
February 14, 2006 under a “Construction Investigation Application,” that showed 
a termporary service installation for a period of ninety days (a copy of this 
document was not received by me until July 25, 2016). Mr. Romero had 
completed improvement plans for the property, with architectural documents 
detailing a home he intended to build on the site. SSWD policy requirement 
3020.140, Charges for Installation of New Service Connection, states: 
 “Upon approval of an application for a new service connection and payment by 
the applicant of the service installation charge and connection fees set forth herein, the 
District will make all necessary installations. All deposits made for such charges and 
fees shall be credited to the parcel of land to be served, and shall run with said parcel of 
land.” 
 
In good faith, Mr. Romero applied for, paid for, and received a new service 
connection in February of 2006. Despite policy requirement 3020.144, dictating 
that “the entire capacity charge is to be paid within thirty (30) days after the 
District approves an applicant’s improvement plan for water service,” SSWD 
failed to charge him the capacity charge for a period of more than two years 







while it was on the market, despite his having informed them he intended to sell 
the parcel. The existing water service remained in place, Mr. Romero marketed 
his property with it in place, and I purchased the property with an existing water 
connection that “ran with said parcel of land.” 
 Despite Mr. Mack’s insistence that “all other customers have paid the 
capacity charge” as a reason I should do so, SSWD has had no other long term 
customers paying for a ‘temporary” connection, and I do not believe they 
currently have any other customers who have paid this charge until they have 
submitted developmental documents such as architectural drawings and/or 
building permits. To date, I have not reached this stage of development, and 
though I intend to at some point in the future, I cannot verify exactly when that 
date may be. Nevertheless, I wish to state that I am willing to consider paying a 
“capacity charge,” but one that is commensurate with the date when SSWD, 
under the terms of their own ordinances, was obliged to charge Michael Romero 
(2006), rather than the current cost, which is nearly double. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
 Prior to June 30, 2017, I made every effort to resolve these circumstances 
with SSWD so that they would not shut off my existing water connection until 
such a time that I might have an opportunity to present this matter to the Board of 
Directors. But all the requests I made of Mr. Mack to answer legitimate, 
reasonable questions based on my status as a long standing customer went 
unanswered until I retained an attorney to assist me in presenting these 
questions to him. I proposed that I make a payment towards the “capacity 
charge” until the Board had a chance to review the situation. Additionally, I 
offered to pay the cost of the “capacity charge” at the price it would have been 
when 15967 Laurel Place was originally purchased by Michael Romero. The 
management team—Mr. Steve Mack, Mr. Kevin Gilman, and Julie Kenny—
refused to consider any of my offers and insisted I agree to the amount they 
demanded (which I could not agree to do) or have my water cut off. My water 
service was disconnected on June 30, 2017, despite my protests, and despite 
the fact that preserving the connection until a formal review was held did not 
affect the District in any way. Because my existing water connection is the last 
available connection in the area, I am currently gravely concerned that SSWD 
will not reinstate my service without demanding that I pay for a new water tower 
that would provide water NOT exclusively to 15967 Laurel Place, but to every 
customer in the entire service area. In fact, I question if whether this situation 
isn’t a deliberate attempt to unlawfully remove my service in order to provide it to 
another potential customer.By refusing to re-instate my service, SSWD would 
dramatically devalue my property and deprive me of any future potential to 
receive service. 
 







I plead that the Board consider these circumstances in a fair and just manner. 
Though I do not believe I currently owe any capacity charge at all, I am willing to 
pay this cost at the rate that should have been charged to to Michael Romero 
when his 90 day contract was up in 2006 ($2,930), upon verification of this 
number.To summarize: 
  
SSWD’s demand that I pay a capacity charge was premature, inconsistent with 
its own regulations, and unlawful because I have never presented, and SSWD 
has never approved, an improvement plan for water service for my property.  For 
the reasons stated above, SSWD should: (a) restore the single family residential 
water service to my property that it unlawfully terminated on June 30, 2017 on 
the pretext that a capacity charge payment was due and owing, when in fact it 
was not, and (b) not seek to collect any capacity charge from me until such time 
as it approves such “improvement plan for water service” as I elect to submit.   
 
However, in the spirit of accommodation, and as a good faith effort to resolve this 
matter, if SSWD restores single family residential water service to my property as 
it existed prior to the termination of service on or about June 30, 2017, I will pay, 
even though no capacity charge is due and owing, the capacity charge of $2,930, 
which was the amount of the capacity charge in 2006 when SSWD established 
water service to the property. I feel my willingness to do so, considering the fact 
that the land is currently undeveloped and my water use is less than 30 days a 
year, is more than reasonable. 
 
Thank you for the time and attention you have devoted to this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Leslie C. Bahr 





		Item V-A - Bahr Appeal

		Item V-A.1 L Bahr Proposal 11-2-2009

		Item V-A.2 - L. Bahr Appeal Letterl






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 7, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: MONTE RIO RECREATION AND PARKS DISTRICT PROPOSAL TO 
PURCHASE DISTRICT SURPLUS LANDS FOR REGIONAL TRAILS SYSTEM  
 


 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from the General Manager on the 
Monte Rio Recreation and Parks District's proposal to purchase District surplus lands for 
inclusion in a regional trails system project, and provide direction to staff.   
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: District lands or easements could be sold at fair market value 
bringing revenue to the District. 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District owns several large parcels in the hills behind the Monte Rio Terraces.  One 
of these parcels contains two District water tanks and is required for ongoing District 
operations.  The others have been declared unneeded for District operations through 
the District's Surplus Lands Strategy which was approved in 2010.  The Monte Rio 
Recreation and Parks District has for some time expressed interest in incorporating 
these District parcels in a regional trails system that could provide hiking and walking 
access and connections to other open spaces and ultimately allow access to the coast 
through lands owned by other entities, including State Parks.  Discussion of this idea 
has waned in recent years but has been recently revived and a meeting on this subject 
was held at the District on August 21.  Supervisor Lynda Hopkins has been very 
involved in this effort.   
 
The current concept is that MRRPD and the County, working with the Open Space 
District, will spearhead the proposal.  The details of how this will happen are still being 
worked on.  Some components involving the District include: 
 


 Parcels would be purchased at fair market value to be determined by appraisals 
directed by the Open Space District. 


 The parcel that includes the District's water tanks would need to stay in District 
ownership, or the parcel could be sold with the District retaining an easement for 
its operational and capital needs.   


 
The next step appears to be a meeting with the Open Space District, MRRPD, District 
staff and appropriate County staff.  I will keep the Board apprised of any developments.   








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 7, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution 17-15, Approving the Adoption of the Public Agencies 
Post-Employment Benefits Trust Administered by Public Agency Retirement 
Services (PARS) 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approve Resolution 17-15.  
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Move $200,000 of District Policy Reserves from low-risk investment 
at the County of Sonoma to higher-risk investment with PARS with the idea of getting 
higher long-term returns on investment.  
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District (and Board) have been considering participation in the PARS Rate 
Stabilization program for the last few months.  The District became aware of the 
program as part of the discussion of ways to become more active in addressing CalPERS 
retirement unfunded actuarial liability (UAL).   
 
In May 2017 we made an accelerated one-time payment on our UAL directly to CalPERS 
in the sum of $60,000 and plan to continue making extra payments for the foreseeable 
future.  An additional approach to addressing UAL is to try to offset CalPERS costs with 
higher investment returns -- and therefore riskier ones -- on remaining District funds.  
This is a very similar approach to our participation in CERBT to offset UAL in our retiree 
health costs.  The PARS program and CERBT both offer a solution to the District's 
limited investment choices.   
 
At the June 2017 meeting, we received a presentation from Rick Icasio of PARS on the 
various programs provided by PARS, its setup and examples of how it can be used.  As 
a reminder, the PARS "Pension Rate Stabilization Program" provides a vehicle for higher 
returns by way of a IRC Section 115 Trust.  Elements of the program, or any Section 
115 Trust, are:    


 Can be used by local governments to fund essential governmental 
functions (i.e., retiree healthcare, pension) 


 Trust is irrevocable and designed to pre-fund retirement plan obligations 







PARS Presentation  2  
September 7, 2017 


 Once contributions are placed into trust, assets from the trust can only be 
used for retirement plan purposes: 


 Reimburse District for CalPERS contributions 
 Assets can be transferred to CalPERS at anytime for pension 
 Up to 2 years of pension costs can be withdrawn for other expenses.   


 
The staff vision of using PARS is fund it using a portion of District Reserves, with the 
goal of earning better returns on principal funds the District has no intention of using 
absent a dire emergency.  PARS has investment portfolios with different risk scenarios 
that, on average, should get rate of returns similar to what CalPERS aims for (4-8 
percent) and much higher than the County funds get (currently in the 1% vicinity). 
Staff's recommendation of investing $200,000 -- approximately two years of retirement 
costs -- with PARS was met with approval by the Board at the August meeting.   
 
The first step towards formalizing our participation in the PARS Rate Stabilization 
Program is approval of Resolution 17-15, adopting a Post-Employment Benefits Trust 
administered by PARS which names the General Manager the Plan Administrator.  Upon 
receipt of an adopted Resolution, PARS would forward a final Agreement to be 
executed.  A draft copy of that Agreement is attached for your review. 
 
It should be noted the Resolution references a Trust for the purpose of prefunding 
"pension obligations and/or OPEB obligations..."  (emphasis added).  The District 
currently utilizes CERBT to prefund District OPEB obligations.  I have been assured by 
PARS that adoption of Resolution 17-15 will not require us to move our CERBT funds to 
PARS. 
 
At the October Board meeting, staff anticipates requesting a check to fund our PARS 
account as well as making a decision regarding the PARS investment choices available 
for District funds. 
 







 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 17‐15 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF THE 
PUBLIC AGENCIES POST‐EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST 


ADMINISTERED BY PUBLIC AGENCY RETIREMENT SERVICES (PARS) 
  
WHEREAS   PARS has made available the PARS Public Agencies Post‐Employment Benefits Trust (the “Program”) for 
the purpose of pre‐funding pension obligations and/or OPEB obligations; and 


WHEREAS  the Sweetwater Springs Water District  (“District”)  is eligible to participate  in the Program, a tax‐exempt 
trust performing an essential governmental function within the meaning of Section 115 of the  Internal Revenue Code, as 
amended, and the Regulations issued there under, and is a tax‐exempt trust under the relevant statutory provisions of the 
State of California; and 


WHEREAS  the District’s adoption and operation of the Program has no effect on any current or former employee’s 
entitlement to post‐employment benefits; and 
 
WHEREAS   the  terms  and  conditions  of  post‐employment  benefit  entitlement,  if  any,  are  governed  by  contracts 
separate from and independent of the Program; and 
 
WHEREAS   the District’s funding of the Program does not, and is not intended to, create any new vested right to any 
benefit nor strengthen any existing vested right; and 
 
WHEREAS  the District reserves the right to make contributions, if any, to the Program. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 


1. The  Governing  Board  hereby  adopts  the  PARS  Public  Agencies  Post‐Employment  Benefits  Trust,  effective 
September 7, 2017; and 


 
2. The Governing Board hereby appoints the GENERAL MANAGER, or his/her successor or his/her designee as the 


District’s Plan Administrator for the Program; and 
 
3. The District’s Plan Administrator is hereby authorized to execute the PARS legal and administrative documents 


on  behalf  of  the  District  and  to  take whatever  additional  actions  are  necessary  to maintain  the District’s 
participation in the Program and to maintain compliance of any relevant regulation issued or as may be issued; 
therefore, authorizing him/her  to  take whatever additional actions are  required  to administer  the District’s 
Program. 


 
AYES:      NOES:      ABSENT:     ABSTAIN: 
 


           
              Sukey Robb‐Wilder 
              President of the Board of Directors 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SONOMA 
 
Christine Hanley, the Acting Clerk of the Governing Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs Water District, State of 
California, hereby certifies that the above foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by said District at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 7th day of September, 2017, and passed by a __________ vote of said Board. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7th day of September, 2017. 
 
          ____________________________  
          Christine Hanley, Acting Clerk of the Board 





























		Item V-C - Res 17-15 - Adoption of the PARS Post Employment Benefit Trust

		Item V-C.1 - Resolution 17-15, Adopting Post-Employment Benefit Trust Administered by PARS

		Item V-C.2 - PARS Draft Agreement






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: September 7, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE REQUEST TO 
THE DISTRICT  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the Guernewood Park Resort request for water service from the District and 
provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 rooms and 
a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums and Hulburt Creek in 
Guernewood Park.  This project has been an on and off proposal for many years and it 
apparently is on again.  Staff has had one meeting with a planning consultant for the 
project and some phone calls and email communications with the engineering 
consultants, BKF Engineers.   
 
We have received estimates of water demand from BKF, the engineering consultants for 
the project developers.  We had originally understood that BKF would hire Coastland 
Engineers, who currently do engineering work for the District, to evaluate and provide 
opinions on the District's ability to serve the Project.  BKF has not done that.   
 
We have been told by Coastland that they believe the District needs a water system 
model for the Guerneville System and they have given us a proposal with a cost of 
approximately $41,000 to do the model and modeling for this project.  We have 
communicated with BKF that we believe this should be their cost as we would not be 
doing a model without this project proposal.  As of the writing of this report, we have 
not heard back from BKF.   
 
It looks like the Guernewood Park Resort will require additional capital expenses for the 
District to be able to adequately serve the Resort.  We intend that the Resort will pay 
the appropriate share of those expenses if the District is to serve the Resort water and 
keep our existing customer whole, i.e., not bearing any extra costs due to the project.    
 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 7, 2017  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in July were 29,485 units (67.7 AF, 
(Guerneville cycle) and production was 79.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, production and 
sales this month were higher (73.7 AF and 61.5 AF, respectively).  The water lost 
percentage has leveled off (25.8) but not where we want it to be.     Figure 1 shows sales, 
production and % difference since 2008.     


 
2. Leaks:  In July we had 13 total leaks and spent 100 man-hours on them.   Those are more 


leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month to July one year ago (9 and 28).    
Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.  Total 
breaks have remained relatively flat for the past year as a 12 month moving average.   


   
3. Russian River Flow: The robust rainy season continues to result in relatively high summer 


flows.  August flows are similar to flows last summer; both are substantially higher than in 
prior years.   Figure 3 shows daily average flow at the Hacienda Bridge compared to the 
recent average and prior years.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  Apparently there's been a hiccup with the appraisal and it's 


getting redone (didn't meet Open Space District requirements).  After the appraisal is 
approved, Open Space will work on the conservation easement. 


  
5. 2017 CIP: This project is going well - bridge work is next. 
 
6. FEMA Applications:  District staff (Kevin Gilman) has completed FEMA applications for 


work already done in response to the winter storms (preliminary work on Old Monte Rio 
Road, costs of flood proofing the El Bonita Well Field, and staff overtime, approximately 
$40,000, of which 75% is reimbursable from FEMA and the remainder may be reimbursable 
from the State), and is working with the County on getting reimbursement for work yet to 
be done on the Old Monte Rio Road repair (unknown, expected to be $40,000-$80,000).   


  
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  There were no toilet rebate reported for August. 
 
8. In-House Construction Projects: Two in-house construction projects were reported for 


August: a new service was installed on Santa Rosa Ave with 2 inch line and 1 inch service 
(65 man-hours), and service upgrade on Melody Ave. (16 man-hours). 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
September 7, 2017 
 
9.  Gantt Chart:   There's nothing showing for September.  I still haven't heard on a bond 


process schedule.     
 
 


 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
September 7, 2017 
 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2017 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-15 Average, Updated July 26, 2017


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2013
2014
2015
2016
09-15 Avg
2017


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 
 
 







 
Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Phase 2&3 Award of 
Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: September 7, 2017 



